
8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton, WA 98312 | 360.674.2381 | www.portofbremerton.org 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 

A G E N D A 
February 13, 2024  Bill Mahan Conference Room 
10:00 AM Port Administration Offices 
 Bremerton Nat’l Airport Terminal Bldg 
 8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton 
 
The Port of Bremerton Board of Commissioners have resumed in-person meetings but are 
maintaining the option for the public to participate remotely as well. The public is invited to 
view and/or participate in the hybrid meeting by attending in person or through one of the 
following options: 

• To stream online only (via BKAT feed, with no interaction possible): 
https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live  

• To join the online Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3359030010  
• For audio only; dial 1.253.215.8782; Meeting ID: 335 903 0010  

 

Call to Order  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Agenda 

Consent Items 

All matters listed under Consent Items have been distributed to each member of the 
Commission for reading and study, are considered to be routine, and will be enacted by one 
motion of the Commission with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired, that 
item may be removed from the Consent Items and placed under Action Items by request. 
 

A. Minutes of the regular business meeting of January 23, 2024. 

B. Payment of checks #902132 through #902135 and #902136 and #902137 through 
#902146 and #E01854 through #E01855 and #85603 through #85623 and #E01856 
through #E01857 from the General Fund for $55,253.60. 

Payment of checks #902147 through #902150 and #902151 through #902153 and 
#902154 through #902155 and #85624 through #85652 and #E01858 through #E01874 
and #902156 through #902159 from the General Fund for $371,533.72. 

Payment of checks #902160 through #902163 and #85653 through #85665 and 
#E01875 through #E01881 and #902164 through #902165 from the General Fund for 
$83,174.06. 

https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3359030010


Agenda for February 13, 2024 
Page 2 

** The Commission may add and take action on other items not listed on the Agenda ** 

Citizen Comments: Open to the public for comment. Speakers are asked to keep their comments to less 
than 3 minutes. Please feel free to submit further comments in writing to the Clerk of 
the Board (gingerw@portofbremerton.org). 

Action Items 

1. Bay Street Properties Remediation Professional Services Agreement with Pioneer 
Technologies, Inc. 

2. Resolution 2024-02 Declaring an Emergency under RCW 39.04.280 

3. Wastewater Rate Schedule 

4. Commission Officer and Board/Committee Assignments Rotation 

Staff Reports 

Commission Reports / New Business 

Executive Session (if necessary) 

Adjournment   

 
Regular business and other meetings that may be attended by members of the Board 

Date Time Meeting 
02/13 10:00 am *Commission Regular Business Meeting - Hybrid 
02/15 11:00 am Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council (KRCC) Executive Committee 
02/16 10:00 am Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) 
02/22 10:00 am Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) Executive Board 
02/22 12:00 pm PSRC Executive Committee 
02/23 10:45 am *Ferry Local Elected Officials Convening 
02/27 6:00 pm  *Commission Regular Business Meeting – Hybrid 

 
Meetings are subject to change or cancellation 

*Denotes events in which two (2) or more Commissioners may attend 



8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton, WA 98312 | 360.674.2381 | www.portofbremerton.org 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

M I N U T E S 
January 23, 2024 Bill Mahan Conference Room 
6:00 PM Port Administration Offices 

Bremerton Nat’l Airport Terminal Bldg 
8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton 

Remote Option via Zoom 

Commissioners and Staff Present 

Commissioners 
Gary Anderson 
Cary Bozeman 
Axel Strakeljahn 

Staff Members 
Jim Rothlin 
Arne Bakker 
Jeremiah Wiley 
James Weaver 

James Goodman  
Ginger Waye 
Stephanie Frame 
Anne Montgomery, Atty 

Call to Order  

President Anderson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Oath of Office 

Kitsap County Judge (Ret.) James Riehl administered the Oath of Office to Axel Strakeljahn, 
re-elected Commissioner for District 3. Commissioner Bozeman offered congratulatory 
comments and Commissioner Strakeljahn provided words of appreciation to everyone for 
their support. 

At 6:05 p.m., the meeting was recessed for a brief reception and reconvened at 6:15 p.m. 

Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by STRAKELJAHN, seconded by BOZEMAN to: 

Approve the Agenda as presented. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 

Consent Items 

A. Minutes of the regular business meeting of January 9, 2024.

Draf
t



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
January 23, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

B. Payment of checks #902125 through #902126 and #902127 through #902128 and 
#902129 through #902131 and #85578 through #85602 and #E01835 through 
#E01853 from the General Fund for $366,138.03. 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by STRAKELJAHN to: 

Approve the Consent Items as presented. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 

Citizen Comments 

David Emmons, President/CEO, Greater Kitsap Chamber of Commerce 

• Congratulated Commissioner Strakeljahn on his re-election. He provided background on 
the Greater Kitsap Chamber of Commerce stating that Commissioner Bozeman was one 
of the initial board members of the Chamber in 2022 after Bremerton and Silverdale 
Chambers merged. He presented an award to Commissioner Bozeman for his leadership 
and tutelage while on the Board, especially regarding the fast ferry initiative. 

Action Item - None 

Staff Reports 

Jim Rothlin, Chief Executive Officer 

• Reported on employee anniversaries providing a brief background on each individual: 

o Jeremiah Wiley, Chief Financial Officer – 2 years 

o Ginger Waye, Executive Assistant – 31 years 

• Inventech Marine has contracted with Henderson Partners, LLC, for their 60,000 sq ft 
building in the industrial park. It is anticipated the walls will be going up starting 
March 15. 

• Currently recruiting a new Airport Manager to replace the previous manager, Monroe 
Whitman IV. 

• A new sign for Amelia’s Hangar Restaurant has been installed on the building. 

• Described the Port’s booth that will be at the upcoming Seattle Boat Show, February 2-10 
at Lumen Field. 

• Busy first of the year kicking off 2024 projects and studies, dealing with freezing weather, 
king tides, etc. There was discussion with the board on the upcoming retreat planning and 
timing. 

• Announced Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) will be holding a 
public hearing/open house on the environmental assessment on the proposed SR3 freight 
corridor study. It will be held February 13 at North Mason High School from 5:00-7:00PM. 

Draf
t



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
January 23, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

Commission Reports / New Business 

1. Commissioner assignments for 2024-2025 representation of the Board on various 
organizations and committees. 

Commissioner Bozeman suggested adding structure to the way committee assignments 
are assigned and rotated. After providing his philosophy on meetings, he provided the 
following recommendations on how the Port can transition the process for assigning 
representation on boards and committees every even calendar year: 

• Continue rotating the Commission officer positions. 

• Assign Commission President to Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council. 

• Assign Commission Vice-President to Puget Sound Regional Council. 

• Assign Commission Secretary to Kitsap Economic Development Alliance. 

• Other assignments can be worked out with Commission agreement. 

He stated his belief that rotating assignments makes for better elected officials as we 
become more informed; have different experiences; and it removes the politics. 

Commissioner Anderson recommended giving it some thought and to bring ideas and 
discussion to the next meeting. It was determined to move Commissioner assignments for 
2024-2025 to the next meeting agenda. 

Commissioner Strakeljahn 

• Central Puget Sound Economic Development District (CPSEDD) is working on putting 
together officer appointments. 

• Recently assumed role of co-chair of Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council (KRCC) Board. 

Commissioner Anderson 

• Reported on a recent meeting on the WSDOT ferry system issues. 

• Planning to attend the upcoming All Kitsap Ports meeting during which James Weaver, 
Director of Marine Facilities, will provide a presentation on grants. 

Executive Session - None 

Adjournment 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 

Submitted,      Approved, 

 

Jim Rothlin      Axel Strakeljahn 
Chief Executive Officer    Commission Secretary 
February 8, 2024     February 13, 2024 

Draf
t



\\pobfile-21\Airport_Data\Public_Forms\Agenda Materials\2024-02-13\Bay Street Properties Remediation Contract\AGENDA SUMMARY-Action Item  -Pioneer Technologies 
Environmental Remediation Contract.docx 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 
 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #1 

Subject: Bay Street Properties Remediation Contract - Pioneer Technologies  

Exhibits: Contract Pioneer Technologies Corporation 

Prepared By: James Weaver, Director of Marine Facilities 

Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

 
Summary: 
In June of 2023, the Port of Bremerton was awarded a United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) grant for $800,000 to conduct environmental remediation for the 
properties located at 521 and 525 Bay Street, Port Orchard, Washington. The Grant requires 
that the Port engage the services of a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP). 

On November 15, 2023, the Port of Bremerton issued a Request for Qualifications. On 
November 29, 2023, three firms responded and were interviewed by a Port of Bremerton 
committee. Upon review and evaluation of the responding firms, Pioneer Technologies was 
identified as the most qualified firm.  

This approval is for a contract with Pioneer Technologies Corporation to complete the tasks 
identified within the EPA grant scope for environmental remediation of the 521 and 525 Bay 
Street properties which contained former petroleum tanks and contaminated soils on the 
property. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
The maximum amount of $270,000.00 in services to be conducted by Pioneer Technologies 
as part of this environmental remediation project. The EPA Grant reimbursement is for a total 
amount of $800,00.00 for work conducted. The net fiscal impact to the Port for the change 
order would be zero.  

 
Strategic Purpose: 
This action conforms with the Port’s strategic plan in Goal 7. Continue to improve the Port’s 
environmental performance and minimize its ecological footprint. 
 
Recommendation: 
Port staff recommend the approval of the Pioneer Technologies contract. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
Move to approve the Port Orchard Properties environmental remediation 
contract with Pioneer Technologies. 

























\\pobfile-21\Airport_Data\Public_Forms\Agenda Materials\2024-02-13\Resolution Declaring Emergency - Avian\Agenda Summary - Avian Flooding Emergency Resolution - 2-08-
24 DRAFT.docx 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 
 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #2 

Subject: Avian Emergency Repair Resolution 

Exhibits: 
Resolution 2024-02 Declaring an Emergency 
Contracts: ServPro Kitsap, Fox Fire, SAFE Security, Red Bird Flight, & 
Armco Construction  

Prepared By: James Goodman, Director of Facilities & Property Development  

Meeting Date: February 13, 2024  

 
Summary: 
On Sunday, January 14, 2024, freezing temperatures caused a section of the Avian Flight 
Center's first-floor sprinkler system to crack and break. The break was in an unheated, limited 
insulated breezeway outside the west lobby. The result of the cracked sprinkler pipe was 
significant flooding throughout the west side of the Avian building, affecting the breezeway, 
a lobby, three offices, and a hallway. The flooding damaged drywall, ceilings, carpet, and office 
property.  

Port employees contacted Alliant Insurance to submit a claim and approval for repairs. 
ServPro of Kitsap was contacted to assess and begin drying and demolition procedures. The 
fire suppression system was non-operational, requiring "fire watch" personnel per the 
requirement of the Fire Department. Port employees conducted the "fire watch" duties 
overnight for several days. SAFE Security of Silverdale was then contracted to continue the 
"fire watch" duties until Fox Fire of Port Orchard completed the repairs to the fire sprinkler 
system on January 25.  

Armco Construction of Manchester was selected to begin immediate renovation work after 
completion of ServPros' removal of damaged debris. Additionally, Red Bird Flight of Arizona 
was contracted to carefully disassemble and move Avian's flight simulator from an affected 
room to another location. However, this should not delay the restoration process.     

The process of the above work complies with Exemptions to Competitive Bidding 
requirements as detailed in RCW 39.04.280 (3)(a) "Present a real, immediate threat to the 
proper performance of essential functions: or (b) will likely result in material loss or damage 
to property, bodily injury, or loss of life if immediate action is not taken.” 

Resolution No. 2024-02 declares that an emergency existed due to damage caused by the 
incident, which required the Chief Executive Officer to resolve and prevent further damage to 
the building quickly and may require subsequent immediate actions, and that this Resolution 



is intended to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to take such emergency actions as stated 
above to address this emergency. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
Funding comes from a claim with Alliant Insurance 
Initial Insurance Agent Estimate:      $ 75,000 - $ 100,000 
 
ServPro Kitsap Current Estimate:      $ 20,000 
Fox Fire Estimate (contract being finalized):   $ 2,000 
Red Bird Flight Estimate:      $ 5,000 
SAFE Security Estimate:      $ 3,000 
Armco Construction Estimate:     $ 25,000 
Current Project Cost Total Estimate:     $ 55,000 
 

Total Cost to Port of Bremerton – Insurance Deductible:  $ 25,000  

 
Recommendation: 
Port staff recommends the approval of Resolution No. 2024-02 declaring an emergency 
existed due to damage caused by the incident, which required the Chief Executive Officer to 
resolve and prevent further damage to the building.  

 
Motion for Consideration: 
Move to approve Resolution No. 2024-02 declaring an emergency under RCW 
39.04.280 and waiving competitive bidding requirements.  

 



PORT OF BREMERTON 
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
DATED:  February 13, 2024 

 
 A RESOLUTION of the Board of Commissioners, Port of Bremerton, declaring 
an emergency under RCW 39.04.280 and waiving competitive bidding requirements. 
 

WHEREAS, the Port of Bremerton (“Port”) has the authority to award a contract 
and commence public work after waiving the competitive bid requirements in an 
emergency situation under the authority provided by RCW 39.04.280, and other 
Washington law; 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 39.04.280, in an emergency, the Port Chief 
Executive Officer may declare an emergency exists, waive competitive bidding 
requirements, award all necessary contracts to address the emergency situation; 

 
WHEREAS, in the event, the Chief Executive Officer declares an emergency and 

allows contracts to address such emergency, the Commission must enter a written 
finding of the existence of the emergency no later than two (2) weeks after award of 
emergency public works contracts; 

 
WHEREAS, on or about January 14, 2024, due to extreme cold weather, water 

pipes in the Port’s building, commonly referred to as Avian Flight Center (the “Building”) 
burst, causing damage to the building (the “Incident”);  

 
WHEREAS, in response to the Incident, the Chief Executive Officer declared an 

emergency and entered into written public works contracts without competitive bidding 
with ServPro Kitsap, SAFE Security, Red Bird Flight, Fox Fire, and Armco Construction 
(collectively the “Contractors”) to repair the building; 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission of the Port of Bremerton (the “Commission”) has 

reviewed the contracts the Chief Executive Officer executed with the Contractors to 
repair the damages caused by the Incident;  
 

WHEREAS, the Commission confirms that an emergency existed due to damage 
caused by the incident, which required the Chief Executive Officer to resolve and 
prevent further damage to the building quickly and may require subsequent immediate 
actions, and that this Resolution is intended to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
take such emergency actions as needed to address this emergency, provided the Chief 
Executive Officer notifies the Commission as soon as practicable thereafter; and 
 

WHEREAS, the emergency situation described above necessitates this 
Resolution. 
 



 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners, Port of 
Bremerton:  
 
1. FINDINGS AND DECLARATION. The Commission hereby and expressly finds 
and declares, based upon the Recitals above, which are expressly adopted herein as 
findings, that the Incident caused damages to the building, which constitutes an 
emergency situation under RCW 39.04.280 and necessitated, and may further 
necessitate, a waiver of competitive bidding requirements. The Commission hereby 
ratifies the contracts the Chief Executive Officer entered into with the Contractors for 
repair of the building. 
 
2. AUTHORITY DELEGATED TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER. This Resolution 
further authorizes the Port’s Chief Executive Officer to exercise such emergency action 
as is reasonably necessary under applicable Washington State law generally, Title 53, 
RCW, RCW 53.12.270 (Delegation of powers to managing official), RCW 39.04.280 for 
emergency procurement, and Chapter 39.28 RCW (Emergency Public Works). Effective 
upon signature hereto, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to exercise such 
additional lawful authority through the use and direction of Port personnel, services, 
equipment, and such additional acts as the Chief Executive Officer may find necessary 
in its sole discretion to properly and safely manage this emergency situation, including 
to obtain supplies, equipment, personal property, professional, procured or technical 
services, etc. (including selecting contractors and awarding such contracts as 
necessary), public works as defined by RCW 39.04.010, and take such other lawful 
acts, as may be necessary and reasonably related, to respond to the emergency 
declared hereunder. Specifically, and without limiting the forgoing, the Commission 
waives the competitive solicitation process(es) for letting public works contracts in 
response to the emergency situation described herein. 
 
 ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Bremerton at the 
regular public meeting thereof held this 13th day of February, 2024 and duly 
authenticated in open session by the signatures of the Commissioners voting in favor 
thereof and the Seal of the Commission. 
 
              
       Commission President 
 
              
       Commission Vice President 
ATTEST:         
 
       
Commission Secretary 
 

























































 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #3 

Subject: 2024 Proposed Wastewater Rate Schedule Update 

Prepared By: 
Jeremiah Wiley, Chief Financial Officer 
Arne Bakker, Chief Operating Officer 

Meeting Date: February 13, 2024  

 
Summary: 
In May 2023, the Port contracted with Donovan Enterprises to perform a Wastewater Cost 
of Service study. Preliminary results were presented to the Commission at the August 22, 
2023, Commission meeting. The purpose of this study was to analysis the cost of operating 
our wastewater facilities and associated customer revenue. This project was undertaken to 
help achieve Port of Bremerton Strategic Plan, Goal #3 “Determine market-based direction 
for key assets to reduce tax dollar dependency”. 

Donovan Enterprises completed their final report in December 2023. There are no 
significant changes from the August 22, 2023, presentation to the final report. The main 
points from the Executive Summary are: 

1. The cost to operate the wastewater facilities greatly exceeds the revenue from 
customers. 

2. Due to the limited number of customers, it is not feasible to charge actual operating 
costs. 

3. The long-term solution appears to be partnering with the City of Bremerton to 
operate the wastewater facility as they can bring expertise and a larger customer 
base. 

4. The short-term solution is to increase our rate over a period of years to match the 
City of Bremerton rates. 

 

 

Port of Bremerton
Five Year Forecast of Wastewater Rates – Phased-in to Catch Up to City of Bremerton Wastewater Rates

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
City of Bremerton

Monthly base charge (per account) 57.10$          59.10$          61.17$          63.31$          65.53$            67.82$            70.19$            
Commodity charge (per Ccf) 5.34$            5.53$            5.72$            5.92$            6.13$              6.35$              6.57$              

Port of Bremerton
Monthly base charge (per account) 2.00$            13.37$          24.73$          36.10$          47.46$            58.83$            70.19$            
Commodity charge (per Ccf) 3.00$            3.59$            4.19$            4.78$            5.38$              5.97$              6.57$              

Average monthly sewer bill 32.36$         49.70$         67.13$         84.47$         101.90$         119.24$         136.67$         



Fiscal Impact: 
The approval of the 2023 Five Year Wastewater Rate increase to get rates in line with the City 
of Bremerton rates is projected to generate revenue for the Port and reduce the tax 
dependency of the Port assets by approximately $8,530 for 2024 and $179,560 total over the 
next six years. 

 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the approval and implementation of the 2023 Five Year Wastewater Rate 
schedule to supplement the maintenance costs and capital investments of wastewater 
management with an effective date of April 1, 2024 

Motion for Consideration: 
Move to approve and implement the 2023 Five Year Wastewater Rate schedule 
to supplement the maintenance costs and capital investments of wastewater 
management with an effective date of April 1, 2024. 

 

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Monthly Revenue 1,326.60$    2,037.54$    2,752.22$    3,463.16$    4,177.84$       4,888.78$       5,603.46$       

Total Annual Revenue 15,919.20$  24,450.50$  33,026.66$  41,557.95$  50,134.11$    58,665.41$    67,241.57$    

Total Additional Wastewater Revenue 8,531.30$    17,107.46$  25,638.75$  34,214.91$    42,746.21$    51,322.37$    

Cumlative Additional Wastewater Revenue 179,560.99$  



\\pobfile-21\Airport_Data\Public_Forms\Agenda Materials\2024-02-13\Commissioner Assignments\Agenda Summary Commission Officer and Committee Rotations.docx 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 
 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #4 

Subject: Commissioner Officer and Board/Committee Assignments Rotation 

Exhibits: Commissioner Bozeman’s Proposed Officer & Committee Assignments 

Meeting Date: February 13, 2024 

 
Summary: 
Per Commissioner Bozeman’s comments at our last Commission meeting, his proposed 
officer and board/committee assignment rotation every two years is attached. He is 
recommending this proposal to add structure to the process and give opportunity to all the 
commissioners while offering some flexibility within the process. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 

 
Strategic Purpose: 
This action conforms with the Port’s strategic plan in Goal 5 to continue to maintain the Port’s 
strong connection with the community. 

 
Motion for Consideration: 
Motion to be determined 



PORT OF BREMERTON COMMISSION 

OFFICER AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS ROTATION EVERY 
TWO YEARS. 

1. Officer Election 

The elected officers of the Port shall be rotated every two 
years.   

a. Commissioner in years 1-2 of their term will be 
Secretary. 

b. Commissioner in years 3-4 of their term will be Vice 
President 

c. Commissioner in years 5-6 of their term will be 
President. 
This will be done by a vote of the Commission at the first 
meeting of each even calendar year. 
 

2. Board and Committee Assignments 

 In order to allow for equal opportunity, board and 
committee assignments will rotate every two years.  

a. The Commission President will represent the Port of 
Bremerton on the Kitsap Regional Coordinating 
Council (KRCC).  

b. The Commission Vice President will represent the 
Port of Bremerton on the Puget Sound Regional 
Council (PSRC). 



c. The Commission Secretary will represent the Port of 
Bremerton on the Kitsap Economic Development 
Alliance (KEDA) Board of Directors. 

 
3. All other Board and Committee assignments will be made 

by the Commission President in agreement with the other 
commissioners and their interest.  
 

4. Alternates will be scheduled as follows:  
a. President is the alternate for all Secretary’s 

designated assignments,  
b. Vice President is the alternate for all President’s 

designated assignments,  
c. Secretary is the alternate for all Vice President’s 

designated assignments. 
 

5. Commissioners may vote to change assignments in order 
to fit their schedule or their interests. 
 


	2024-02-13_Agenda
	2024-01-23_Minutes
	Action Item 1 - Pioneer Technologies Agreement
	AGENDA SUMMARY-Action Item  -Pioneer Technologies Environmental Remediation Contract
	PTC Signed Agreement

	Action Item 2 - Resolution 2024-02 Declaring an Emergency - Avian
	Agenda Summary - Avian Flooding Emergency Resolution - 2-08-24 DRAFT
	2024-02 Declaring an Emergency for Avian Repairs
	2024-02-09_Emergency Repair Contracts To Date

	Action Item 3 - Wastewater Rate Schedule
	Action Item 4 - Commissioner Assignments
	Agenda Summary Commission Officer and Committee Rotations
	Officer election and committee selection 2024




